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Buildworks is a supplier of heavy building materials
to the construct ion industry. The company
consists of two divisions: Building Products and
Aggregates. Building Products currently comprises
West End Claybrick, which manufactures a range
of clay bricks and is in process of extending its
product line to include roof tiles. The Aggregates
division includes Drift Supersand, a supplier of
sand, gravel and stone.

Situated in Gauteng, the company and i ts
operations are well positioned to take geographic
advantage of opportunities in the region where the
biggest infrastructure expenditure is set to take
place. Buildworks does, however, have a
noticeable presence in the North West ProvInce
and Free State through West End Claybrick.

BUILDWORKS
Annual Report 2008

For more information, 
visit our website at 
www.buildworksgroup.co.za
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VISION AND MISSION

REVENUE R201 MILLION 

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX R49 MILLION 

HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE OF 

11,04 CENTS PER SHARE

EBITDA PERCENTAGE 41,2%

PROFIT AFTER TAX PERCENTAGE 24,4%

To create long-term sustainable value for

shareholders in a socially responsible manner

with products and services which are

used to build the world around us
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JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

It is with great pleasure that we present our first annual
report as a listed entity, and at this time we extend a warm
welcome to all our new shareholders.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Buildworks is a group focused on manufacturing and
providing heavy building materials to the construction
industry and in most cases direct to the end user. Its
products are an integral component of the basic building
structure and are an irreplaceable cornerstone used in the
construction of roads, stadiums, shopping centres,
railways, schools, offices, houses and other infrastructure
and will benefit from the continued capital formation in
South Africa.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Buildworks has produced a highly satisfactory set of
maiden annual results. The group’s turnover was below
the forecast for the period; however, the group achieved
a net profit after tax of R49,1 million which was in line
with the forecast included in our pre-listing statement of
2007. This was due to the group being able to improve
slightly upon the anticipated gross margins and tight
control of expenses.

The Drift Supersand business enjoyed growth in the road
building and civils sectors which more than offset the
weakness experienced in the commercial and residential
market. Turnover at West End was below anticipation as
residential building slowed but the business achieved
outstanding results in the face of tough macro-economic
factors.

Buildworks has produced
a highly satisfactory set of
maiden annual results.

We are confident that 
our positioning will offer 
a long-term future with
strong underlying growth

B u i l d w o r k s  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 0 8 3
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JOINT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER & CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
(continued)

The group’s gross margin improved as a result of the strict
adherence to manufacturing processes, higher quality
yields and higher manufacturing economies of scale as a
result of larger volume orders. The group was highly
conscious of the rate at which input costs were escalating
in the second half of the year and an exceptional effort was
made to mitigate these increases through substitution and
the additional buy in and holding of raw materials.

Effective 1 September 2007 the group acquired Drift
Supersand and West End. 100% of Drift Supersand was
acquired for a total investment of 95,7 million shares in
Buildworks at an initial cost of R28,7 million. Net assets of
R3,7 million were acquired in Drift Supersand resulting in a
positive differential of goodwill of R12,1 million. 99% of
West End was acquired for a total investment of
204,7 million shares in Buildworks at an initial cost of
R61,4 million. Net assets of R10,1 million were acquired in
West End resulting in a positive differential of goodwill of
R93,3 million.

The allocation between goodwill and identifiable intangible
assets as a result of the excess of the cost of the
acquisitions over the fair value of the net tangible assets
acquired in terms of IFRS 3 has now been included in the
year-end accounts.

PROSPECTS

The global financial crisis that we are currently experiencing
and the anticipated recession have changed the short-term
economic outlook dramatically since our listing date last
year, with a significant slowdown in growth in First World
economies having a knock on effect on emerging-market
economies like South Africa. The continued high interest
rates and tightened credit conditions have caused a major
slowdown in the residential and commercial markets. 

There are, however, early indications that inflation will start
to subside in early 2009 and the prospects that there will be
a reduction in the prime interest rate appear likely. The
building products division is sensitive to the interest rate
environment and the availability of capital. A recovery in the
residential housing will have an immediate impact on the
prospects. In the short term, margin contraction is
expected as excess inventories make it difficult to recover
the historical increase in input costs. The aggregates
business should sustain its growth as it compensates for
the downturn in residential and commercial with increased
volumes for the massive roads programme in Gauteng.

The roof tile plant is progressing well and installation of the
equipment has commenced. The planning around the
production and marketing is well advanced and we
anticipate launching in the second half of the financial
year. It is expected that the roof tile plant will have a
moderate impact on the second half of our 2009 year and
a material impact on the 2010 financial year. It is
anticipated that the roof tile plant’s final cost will be
R70 million as a result of the selection of higher
production capacity and greater levels of automation. The
option on the paver’s plant remains and we continue to
assess the optimum time to exercise this option. 

The current operating climate will certainly be challenging
over the next year and the success factors that generated
our returns will remain in place, those being our ability to
produce quality product at the low end of the cost curve,
our marketing coverage which ensures reasonable selling
margins and our relatively low levels of debt.

A significant amount of time and costs have been spent to
conclude the acquisition of Consolidated Power (“Conco”)
which has been detailed in the post balance sheet events.
While a high degree of uncertainty still remains as to the
successful conclusion of the fund raising, the Conco
business continues to perform within the expected
parameters. To date there have been no cancellations of
orders, however there has been withdrawal of prospective
tenders in the mining sector. The level of prospects remains
sufficient that Conco should be able to sustain its order
book. To mitigate against a potential long-term slowdown,
the business has expanded its business development in
Africa and the Middle East.

We are, however, still confident that the government’s drive
to improve the quality of living and general infrastructure in
the country will continue and their commitment is clear with
their continued additional budget allocations. We are
confident that our positioning will offer a long-term future
with strong underlying growth. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Following the listing in November 2007, the new board has
moved quickly to set up the necessary structures to comply
with the King II Code of Corporate Governance. 
An audit/risk committee has been established and is
chaired by an independent non-executive director. 
The board is in the process of establishing the
remuneration committee.
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Regal Brick

74% 100%

Blend Drift Super
Sandwerke

100%

West End
Drift

Supersand

Buildworks
Group Limited

100% 100%

APPRECIATION

We thank our loyal staff for their commitment and hard work
which contributed to Buildworks’s achievement of its
milestone listing on the JSE. We also thank our customers,
business partners, advisors, suppliers and our shareholders
for their ongoing support and faith in the group.

BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

Buildworks is committed to BEE and initiatives relating to all
aspects covered by the DTI scorecard are being
addressed.

At year-end Buildworks had an empowerment shareholding
in excess of 25%.

BUILDWORKS STRUCTURE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE

RAOUL GAMSU

Chief Executive Officer – BAcc CA(SA)

Raoul is the founder of the group. In 1990 he qualified with
a BACC from the University of the Witwatersrand. He is a
CA(SA), as well as a Member of the National Executive of
the South African Board of Jewish Education.

In 1999, Raoul departed Bidvest as managing director of
Silveray Stationery Transvaal after the highly successful
turnaround of the business after its acquisition by
Bidvest. Prior to that, he led the turnaround of Jonrod
Manufacturing, also part of the Bidvest Group.

In 1999 he joined Rebhold Group Limited, where he fulfilled
various roles including the rationalisation of the group’s food
interests and the successful negotiation and formation of
the R15 billion Total Facilities Management Company
business with Telkom.

In 2003 he was appointed Chief Operating Officer of
Mvelaphanda Group Limited (created through the merger 
of Rebserve and Mvelaphanda Holdings), and was
responsible for the integration and management of a
diverse range of businesses. The businesses employed in
excess of 32 000 people with an annual operating profit of
approximately R250 million.

In May 2007 he was responsible for leading the consortium
which created and subsequently listed Buildworks.

JANNIE HOOMAN

Executive Director (Aggregates) – BSc (Mining
Eng) MSc

Jannie is an experienced executive with a sound financial
and engineering background, and has over 13 years’
experience in the aggregates and ready-mix industries. He
has held both senior line management and professional
consulting positions internationally in the mining, quarrying,
aggregates and ready-mix industries. He has also served
as President of the Institute of Quarrying Southern Africa
and Branch Chairman of the Aggregate and Stone
Producers Association of South Africa.

Jannie has studied at the University Nevada Reno and
Mackay School of Mines. He has a Bachelor of Science
(Mining Engineering) and Master of Science (Mining
Engineering and Mineral Economics) both achieved
with distinction.

Jannie has held positions as managing director at Shaft
Sinkers (Proprietary) Limited, director (Aggregates and
Readymix) at PPC Limited, various positions at Holcim,
including director (Aggregates and Readymix) for Holcim
Central Eastern Europe, and positions at a number of Iscor
coal mines, including acting general manager at
Tshikondeni Mine and chief mining engineer and acting
general manager at Durnacol Mine.

IVOR KLITZNER

Executive Director (Finance and Strategy) –
BComm CA(SA)

Ivor completed his articles in 1993 and is a CA(SA). He
was financial director at Hallmark Hemdon (Pty) Limited,
before leaving them in 2000 to join M&IC Distributors (Pty)
Limited, a subsidiary of Brandcorp Holdings Limited, as
financial director.

NON-EXECUTIVE

HERMAN MASHABA

Non-Executive Chairperson of the Board 

Herman was unable to complete his academic studies
when, in 1980, in his second year of studies towards a
BAdmin degree at the University of the North, the university
was shut down due to political unrest. After employment at
Spar and Motani Industries, he decided to begin an
entrepreneurial career.

Herman sold different products including insurance, fire
detection systems, linen, crockery and dinner services on a
commission basis for almost two years. His break came
late in 1983 when, after selling hair-care products for a
Johannesburg based company, he decided to start his own
hair-care product manufacturing business.

In February 1985 the first bottle of Black Like Me products
hit the South African market. He started the business with
four partners, including his wife, with a R30 000 loan, in a
200m2 SBDC unit in Ga-Rankuwa, in the then homeland of
Bophuthatswana. The business enjoyed massive growth
from inception and moved to a factory in Mabopane by
1990. He bought the business back from Colgate Palmolive
in 1999 after selling it in 1997. In 2001 Black Like Me
products were launched in the United Kingdom.

In 2002 he decided to join the BEE arena and formed
Leswikeng Minerals & Energy (Proprietary) Limited.

In January 2004 Herman resigned as CEO of Black Like
Me, and sold 49,9% shareholding to Amka Products in
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2005. In 2004 he was elected as chairman of the Cosmetic
Industry in South Africa to guide the industry to develop
BEE initiatives.

To date Herman, through his numerous business ventures,
has invested in various sectors including mining,
construction, exhibitions, real estate, security, aviation and
Information Technology. Herman was a non-executive
director at Edcon at the time of the successful private
equity buyout in 2007.

Herman’s awards received to date include:

• New Nation/Engen Businessman of the Year (1994);

• Marketing Person of the Year by the Institute of
Marketing Management (1994);

• SABC/Tribute Achievers Award (2001);

• Award for Entrepreneurial Leadership by Henley
Management College (2003);

• Free Market Award by the Free Market Foundation
President’s Award by the Black Management Forum
(2004); and

• Honorary Award by UNISA for Outstanding Entrepreneur
and Leader in the Business Environment (2005).

NOEL MACHINGAWUTA

Non-Executive Director – PhD (Process
Metallurgy) BSc (Engineering) (Hons) (Metallurgy
and Materials) MAP (Wits)

Noel has over 17 years’ experience in the mining and
metallurgical industry.

He holds a BSc (Eng) Hons (1984) and PhD: Process
Metallurgy (1988) from Imperial College, London University,
and since 2003, sits on a number of the boards of
Leswikeng and Phatsima, including:

• Chief Operating Officer for Beneficiation and Executive
Director of Leswikeng Minerals and Energy (“LME”),
where he is responsible for minerals beneficiation and
driving new business development;

• Established and manages the operations of Leswikeng
UG2 Minerals which produces chromite concentrate
from beneficiating platinum flotation tailings;

• A director of Mogale Alloys (Proprietary) Limited, a
Company producing ferroalloys for the stainless steel
industry, where he is responsible for technical
management of operations; and

• A director of Drillcorp Africa, an exploration drilling
company, with 30 operating drill rigs in South Africa,
where he is responsible for new business development.

From 1996 to 2003 he held various positions at
Gencor/BHP Billiton, including Manager: Chromium R&D
and Consulting Metallurgist. He led several projects
involving submerged-arc smelting and dc-arc smelting of
various ores to support Billiton’s chrome, manganese and
nickel operating divisions.

Noel has also been Chief Engineer of the Pyrometallurgy
Division at Mintek, a Research Scientist for Royal
Dutch/Shell based in Anhem, The Netherlands, and a
Research Fellow at National Physical Laboratory,
Teddington, England. He has previously served on the
Council of the South African Institute of Mining and
Metallurgy (2003 – 2007).

ANTHONY DIXON

Independent Non-Executive Director – CA(SA)
FinstD

During a 29-year career with Coopers & Lybrand
(PricewaterhouseCoopers), Tony Dixon became Regional
Chairman – KwaZulu-Natal and a long-serving member of
the firm’s National Executive and Governing Board.

From 1995 to today Tony has held a number of executive
and non-executive directorships on a number of major
listed and unlisted boards including one of South Africa’s
largest short-term insurance companies – Guardian
National Insurance Company before its merger with
Santam. These directorships included the positions of
Managing Director, Financial Director and Chairman. He
has considerable audit committee experience.

Tony was the Executive Director of the Institute of Directors
for the four years from 2004 to 2007. He is acknowledged
as an expert in corporate governance and has been
instrumental in establishing the Institute of Directors in
South Africa as the recognised custodians of Corporate
Governance in the country. For a number of years he
provided the secretariat role to the King Committee of
which he is currently a member. The committee is currently
actively working on King III which should be released
towards the end of 2008. He has presented on corporate
governance matters at numerous conferences, seminars
and workshops.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The board will appraise the chairperson’s performance on
an annual or such other basis as the board may determine.
The chairperson, or a sub-committee appointed by the
board, will appraise the performance of the executive
directors, at least annually.

All directors will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election by Buildworks ordinary shareholders at least
once every three years in accordance with the articles.

Board meetings will be held at least quarterly, with
additional meetings convened when circumstances
necessitate. The board will set the strategic objectives of
the company and determine investment and performance
criteria as well as being responsible for the proper
management, control, compliance and ethical behaviour of
the businesses under its direction.

The board will make a self-evaluation of itself from time 
to time.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

Board appointments shall be conducted in a formal and
transparent manner by the board as a whole, free from any
dominance of any one particular shareholder.

The meetings at which the appointment of directors is
discussed and/or confirmed will be properly minuted.

This policy also bears reference to the need for the
annual appraisal of the performance of the board and
individual directors.

New directors shall hold office until the next annual general
meeting, at which they shall retire and become available for
re-election. A brief curriculum vitae of each director
standing for election or re-election at the annual general
meeting shall accompany the notice of annual general
meeting contained in the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The board has established an audit committee all
members of which shall be non-executive directors, of
whom one shall be the chairperson and one shall be the
Designated Advisor. The majority of the members will be
financially literate. The committee’s primary objective will
be to provide the board with additional assurance
regarding the efficacy and reliability of the financial
information used by the directors, to assist them in the
discharge of their duties. The committee will be required to
provide satisfaction to the board that adequate and

The company is fully committed to the principles of 
the Code of Corporate Practices and Conduct set out in
King II.

The directors recognise the need to conduct the enterprise
with integrity and in accordance with generally acceptable
corporate practices. This includes timely, relevant and
meaningful reporting to Buildworks shareholders and other
stakeholders providing a proper and objective perspective
of the company and its activities.

The directors have, accordingly, established mechanisms
and policies appropriate to the company’s business in
keeping with its commitment to best practices in Corporate
Governance in order to reflect its commitment to King II.
The board will review these from time to time.

The formal steps taken by the directors are summarised
below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board consists of three executive directors and three
non-executive directors of whom one is considered
independent. The board ensures that there is an
appropriate balance of power and authority on the board,
such that no one individual or block of individuals can
dominate the board’s decision taking. The non-executive
directors are individuals of calibre, credibility and have the
necessary skills and experience to bring judgment to bear
independent of management, on issues of strategy,
performance, resources, transformation, diversity and
employment equity, standards of conduct and evaluation
of performance.

The information needs of the board are reviewed annually
and directors have unrestricted access to all company
information, records, documents and property to enable
them to discharge their responsibilities sufficiently. Efficient
and timely methods of informing and briefing board
members prior to board meetings will be developed and in
this regard steps will be taken to identify and monitor key
risk areas, key performance areas and non-financial
aspects relevant to Buildworks. In this context, the directors
will be afforded information in respect of key performance
indicators, variance reports and industry trends.

The board has established a formal orientation programme
to familiarise incoming directors with issues affecting the
board. 

The chairperson is a non-executive director, whose role is
separate from the executive directors.
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appropriate financial and operating controls are in place;
that significant business, financial and other risks have
been identified and are being suitably managed; and that
satisfactory standards of governance, reporting and
compliance are in operation.

Within this context, the board is responsible for the group’s
systems of internal financial and operational control. The
executive directors will be charged with the responsibility of
determining the adequacy, extent and operation of these
systems. Comprehensive reviews and testing of the
effectiveness of the internal control systems in operation will
be performed by external practitioners, who report to the
audit committee.

The audit committee will meet at least three times a year.
Executives and managers responsible for finance, the
heads of the internal audit and the external auditors will be
in attendance.

The audit committee may authorise engaging for non-audit
services with the appointed external auditors or any other
practising firm of auditors, after consideration of the
following:

• The essence of the work to be performed may not be of
a nature that any reasonable and informed observer
would construe as being detrimental to good corporate
governance or in conflict with that normally undertaken
by the accountancy profession;

• The nature of the work being performed will not affect
the independence of the appointed external auditors in
undertaking the normal audit assignments;

• The work being done may not conflict with any
requirement of IFRS or principles of good corporate
governance;

• Consideration to the operational structure, internal
standards and processes that were adopted by the
audit firm in order to ensure that audit independence is
maintained in the event that such audit firm is engaged
to perform accounting or other non-audit services to its
client base. Specifically:

– The Company may not appoint a firm of auditors to
improve systems or processes where such firm of
auditors will later be required to express a view as to
the functionality or effectiveness of such systems or
processes;

– The total fee earned by an audit firm for non-audit
services in any financial year of the company,
expressed as a percentage of the total fee for audit
services, may not exceed 35% without the approval
of the board;

– A firm of auditors will not be engaged to perform
any management functions (e.g. acting as curator)
without the express prior approval of the board. A
firm of auditors may be engaged to perform
operational functions, including that of
bookkeeping, when such firm of auditors are not
the appointed external auditors of the company
and work is being performed under management
supervision.

The audit committee may delegate the approval of the
appointment of a firm of auditors for non-audit services to
management when the cumulative total budgeted cost
for an assignment or assignments does not exceed
R50 000 from the date of the last report-back of the use
of the appointed external auditors or any other practising
firm of auditors, to the audit committee. Management
shall report back on the use of the appointed external
auditors or any other practising firm of auditors at
meetings of the audit committee.

Information relating to the use of non-audit services from
the appointed external auditors of the company shall be
disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements.
Separate disclosure of the amounts paid to the
appointed external auditors for non-audit services as
opposed to audit services, shall be made in the annual
financial statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company currently does not have a remuneration
committee, as this is not an ALTX requirement. 

It is the intention of the board to constitute the
remuneration committee upon the appointment of an
additional independent non-executive director. It will be the
committee’s responsibility to determine the remuneration,
incentive arrangements, profit participation and benefits of
the executive directors and executive management. 
The committee will be responsible for ensuring that levels
of remuneration are sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
executives of the calibre required for high-level
management as well as key personnel positions. It will also
be responsible for measuring the performance of the
executive directors in discharging their functions and
responsibilities.

INVESTMENTS

The board meets when necessary to consider acquisitions
and sales of investment properties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
(continued)

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS AND PROFESSIONAL
ADVICE

The company operates a policy of prohibiting dealings by
directors and certain other managers in periods
immediately preceding the announcement of its interim and
year-end financial results, any period while the company is
trading under cautionary announcement and at any other
time deemed necessary by the board.

The board will establish a procedure for directors, in
furtherance of their duties, to take independent professional
advice, if necessary, at the company’s expense. All
directors will have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary.

THE COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary provides the board as a whole and
directors individually with detailed guidance as to how their
responsibilities should be properly discharged in the best
interest of the company. The company secretary provides a
central source of guidance and advice to the board, and
within the company, on matters of ethics and good
corporate governance. The company secretary will be
subjected to an annual evaluation by the board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The objective of risk management is to identify, assess,
manage and monitor the risks to which the business is
exposed. This is a board responsibility.

Risks will be assessed and appropriate insurance cover
purchased for all material risks above pre-determined self-
insured limits. Levels of cover will be re-assessed annually
in light of claims experiences and events affecting the
group, internally and externally.

COMMUNICATION

It will be the policy of Buildworks to meet regularly with
institutional shareholders and investment analysts, as well
as to provide presentations on the company and its
performance.

EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Buildworks will place particular emphasis on the
development and training of its people, and will endeavour
to ensure that employees are offered equal opportunity and
appropriate participation.

ETHICS

Buildworks is committed to promoting the highest
standards of ethical behaviour amongst all its employees
and, to this extent a Code of Ethics for the company and its
employees is to be adopted.

SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

Environment

Buildworks recognises that its activities have an impact on
the environment. Buildworks has adopted a strategy that
strives to minimise this impact by regularly reviewing its
activities and compliance with all relevant legislation.

Corporate social responsibility

As a participant in the SA economy, the company
acknowledges its responsibility towards the community.
Where appropriate there is participation in programmes
aimed at education, training or the improvement of
previously disadvantaged communities.

Health and safety

Buildworks acknowledges its responsibility to its employees
and complies with applicable legislation regarding quality,
safety, health and the environment. We aim to provide and
maintain, as far as practicably possible, a working
environment that is safe without material risk to the health
of our employees. Where necessary we have committees
and external consultants monitoring compliance.
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDING

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders that are, directly and indirectly, beneficially interested in 5% or more of the company’s issued ordinary shares,
as far as is known to the company, are as follows:

Number of Percentage of
As at 31 August 2008 shares shares

Firefly Investments 142 092 823 30.23
Phatsima Brick & Clay 70 609 570 15.02
Phatsima Quarries 30 712 515 6.53
Standard Bank of South Africa Limited 30 621 615 6.52
Katzgold Trading & Investment 29 536 902 6.28

303 573 425 64.59

Public and non-public shareholders Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of
As at 31 August 2008 shareholders shareholders shares shares

Non-public shareholders
Directors and associates
Phatsima Brick & Clay 1 0,43 70 609 570 15,02
Phatsima Quarries 1 0,43 30 712 515 6,53
RBG Trust 1 0,43 13 663 591 2,91
Ocean View Trust 1 0,43 10 329 791 2,20
Hooman Family Trust 1 0,43 6 231 072 1,33
Hambridge Family Trust 1 0,43 6 231 072 1,33
Ivor Klitzner Family Trust 1 0,43 3 000 000 0,64

7 3,02 140 777 611 29,95

Public shareholders
General public 225 96,98 329 222 389 70,05

Total 232 100,00 470 000 000 100,00

DIRECTORS' INTEREST
The direct and indirect beneficial interests of the directors in the company’s securities as at the financial year-end, as far as
could be determined, is as follows:

Beneficial direct
and indirect

(including their Total beneficial
As at 31 August 2008 associates) percentage

H Mashaba 56 062 410 11,93
R Gamsu 13 663 591 2,91
N Machingawuta 9 073 065 1,93
J Hooman 6 231 072 1,33
I Klitzner 3 000 000 0,64

88 030 138 18,73

SHAREHOLDER SPREAD
Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of 

As at 31 August 2008 shares shares shareholders shares

Strate
0 – 1 000 26 782 0,01 29 12,50

1 001 – 10 000 355 995 0,08 58 25,00
10 001 – 100 000 2 867 607 0,61 63 27,16

100 001 – 500 000 6 407 950 1,36 26 11,21
500 001 – 1 000 000 2 475 500 0,53 3 1,29

1 000 001 and more 457 864 266 97,41 34 14,66

469 998 100 99,99 213 91,81

Certificated
0 – 1 000 1 900 0,01 19 8,19

Total 470 000 000 100,00 232 100,00
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements and group financial statements of Buildworks Group Limited, which
comprise the directors’ report, the balance sheets as at 31 August 2008, the income statements, the statements of changes
in equity and cash flow statements for the year then ended, a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, as set out on pages 15 to 42.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements and group
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the
Companies Act of South Africa, 1973. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements and group financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as of 31 August 2008, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South
Africa, 1973.

PKF (Jhb) Inc.
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors
Registration Number 1994/001166/21
Johannesburg

Per: S Kock
Chartered Accountant (SA)
Registered Auditor

24 November 2008
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL

The directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa, 1973, to maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and group financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements and group financial
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations
and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external
auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and group financial statements.

The financial statements and group financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the directors to meet
these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss
in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined
framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk.
These controls are monitored throughout the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical
standards in ensuring the group’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above
reproach. The focus of risk management in the group is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known
forms of risk across the group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group endeavours to minimise it by
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the financial
statements and group financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 August 2009 and, in the light of this review and
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the group has or has access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently reviewing and reporting on the group’s financial statements. 
The financial statements and group financial statements have been examined by the group’s external auditors and their report
is presented on page 12.

The financial statements and group financial statements set out on pages 15 to 42, which have been prepared on the going
concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on 24 November 2008 and were signed on its behalf by:

IM Klitzner RD Gamsu
Director Director
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DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY SECRETARY

For the year ended 31 August 2008, the company had lodged with the Registrar of Companies all such returns as are
required of a public company in terms of Section 268 (a)(d) of the Companies Act 61 of 1973, as amended and that all such
returns are true, correct and up to date in respect of the financial year reported upon.

Morestat Corporate Services (Proprietary) Limited
Company Secretary

24 November 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors submit their annual report, which forms part of the annual financial statements of the company and the group
for the year ended 31 August 2008.

INCORPORATION

The company was incorporated on 15 February 2007 and obtained its certificate to commence business on the 
same day.

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

Main business and operations

The group is engaged in the supply of heavy building materials to the construction industry and operates principally in
South Africa.

The operating results and state of affairs of the company and the group are fully set out in the attached financial statements
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.

Net profit of the group was R49 056 890, after taxation of R19 221 563.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The group has completed, subject to the condition precedent that the company raise the requisite capital, the acquisition of
Consolidated Power Projects (Proprietary) Limited ("Conco") a leading provider of Turnkey Solutions for and power services
to the electricity supply industry.

Full details of the acquisition were set out in a circular sent to shareholders on 20 October 2008. A note on the acquisition is
set out in note 37 to the annual financial statements.

AUTHORISED AND ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL

The number of ordinary shares in issue at 31 August 2008 was 470 000 000. On 1 September 2007, ordinary shares were
issued as follows:

– 104 689 337 as part consideration of the West End Claybrick (Proprietary) Limited acquisition;

– 95 633 849 as part consideration of the Drift Supersand (Proprietary) Limited acquisition; and

– 169 676 814 issued in terms of the rights offer and the initial purchase offer.

The unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors until the next annual general meeting.

BORROWING LIMITATIONS

In terms of the Articles of Association of the company, the directors may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow
money, as they consider appropriate. The borrowing powers of the directors are unlimited.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were declared or paid to shareholders during the year.

ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES

Effective 1 September 2007 the group acquired Drift Supersand (Proprietary) Limited and West End Claybrick
(Proprietary) Limited.

100% of Drift Supersand was acquired for a total investment of 95,7 million shares in Buildworks. Assets of R136,5 million
and liabilities of R143,4 million were acquired in Drift Supersand.

99% of West End was acquired for a total investment of 204,7 million shares in Buildworks. Assets of R180,5 million and
liabilities of R107,3 million were acquired in West End.
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DIRECTORS

The Articles of Association require that all directors retire and offer themselves for re-election at every annual general meeting.

Details of the directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 22 to the annual financial statements. 

Details of the directors’ shareholding are disclosed in the analysis of shareholders report.

The directors of the company during the year and to the date of this report are as follows:

Name Changes

RD Gamsu Executive
J Hooman Executive Appointed 25 September 2007
IM Klitzner Executive Appointed 25 September 2007
HSP Mashaba Non-executive Appointed 25 September 2007
NC Machingawuta – Zimbabwean Non-executive Appointed 25 September 2007
AD Dixon Non-executive Appointed 01 April 2008

SECRETARY

Morestat Corporate Services (Proprietary) Limited was appointed as secretary on 17 September 2007.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

Name of subsidiary Net income after tax
R

West End Claybrick (Proprietary) Limited 26 665 785

Drift Supersand (Proprietary) Limited 15 390 505

Details of the company's investment in subsidiaries are set out in note 6.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

The following special resolutions were passed by shareholders at the General Meetings on 25 September 2007 and
9 November 2007:

1. The name of the company be changed to Buildworks Group Limited;

2. The company is converted from a private company to a public company;

3. The authorised share capital of the company being R1 000 divided into 1 000 ordinary shares of R1,00 each of which
100 (one hundred) have been issued, be subdivided into 100 000 000 ordinary shares of R0,00001 each;

4. Subject to the passing of special resolution number 1 to 3 above, the authorised share capital of the company being 
R1 000 comprising 100 000 000 ordinary shares of R0,00001 each of which 10 000 have been issued, be and is
increased to R10 000 by the creation of 900 000 000 ordinary shares of R0,00001 each ranking pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares in the company. The authorised and issued capital of the company will then be:

– Authorised: 1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R0,00001 each
– Issued: 10 000 000 ordinary shares of R0,00001 each;

5. The company adopted in place of its existing Memorandum of Association a new Memorandum of Association;

6. The company adopted in place of its existing Articles of Association, new Articles of Association in terms of the
requirements stipulated by the JSE Limited; and

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(continued)
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7. The authorised but unissued ordinary shares of the company be placed under the control of the directors with the
authority to issue all or part thereof to such persons and in terms of such terms and conditions and such prices as the
directors may from time to time determine, but subject to the provisions of section 221, 222 and 223 of the Act and the
requirements of the JSE Limited.

The following special resolutions were passed by shareholders at the General Meeting on 12 November 2008 and registered
by the Registrar of Companies during the reporting period:

1. Authorisation for the increase of authorised ordinary share capital; and

2. Authorisation to repurchase company shares in terms of section 85 of the Companies Act in the event of the Vendors
breaching any obligations under the Acquisition Agreement as a consequence of which the company perfects its pledge
of Consideration Shares pledged by the Vendors in terms of the Acquisition Agreement.

AUDITORS

PKF (Jhb) Inc. will continue in office in accordance with section 270(2) of the Companies Act.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(continued)
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Group Company
Figures in Rand Notes 2008 2008

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 196 735 142 394 634
Goodwill 4 102 423 282 –
Intangible assets 5 20 656 135 –
Investments in subsidiaries 6 – 90 399 046
Financial assets 7 14 036 170 –

333 850 729 90 793 680

Current assets
Inventories 8 38 083 721 –
Loans to group companies 9 – 115 375 857
Trade and other receivables 10 31 552 492 103 052
Cash and cash equivalents 11 42 274 905 25 440 127

111 911 118 140 919 036

Total assets 445 761 847 231 712 716

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 12 217 307 043 217 307 043
Retained income 49 056 890 9 507 254

266 363 933 226 814 297

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 13 46 212 104 –
Instalment sale agreements 14 42 769 788 –
Deferred tax 15 11 416 994 19 660
Provisions 16 8 792 843 –

109 191 729 19 660

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities 13 13 707 501 –
Current tax payable 22 430 107 3 843 700
Instalment sale agreements 14 11 892 335 –
Trade and other payables 17 22 176 242 1 035 059

70 206 185 4 878 759

Total liabilities 179 397 914 4 898 419

Total equity and liabilities 445 761 847 231 712 716

Net asset value per share (cents) 56,67

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 August 2008
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Group Company
Figures in Rand Notes 2008 2008

Revenue 19 201 344 099 –
Cost of sales 20 (92 898 761) –

Gross profit 108 445 338 –
Other income 325 203 2 400 000
Operating expenses (34 076 278) (4 736 997)

Operating profit (loss) 21 74 694 263 (2 336 997)
Investment revenue 23 586 403 15 710 999
Finance costs 24 (7 002 213) (3 388)

Profit before taxation 68 278 453 13 370 614
Taxation 25 (19 221 563) (3 863 360)

Profit for the year 49 056 890 9 507 254

Earnings per share 27
Basic (cents) 11,03
Diluted (cents) 11,03
Headline (cents) 11,04

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 August 2008
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 August 2008

Share Share Total share Retained Total
Figures in Rand capital premium capital income equity

Group
Balance at 01 September 2007 – – – – –
Changes in equity
Profit for the year – – – 49 056 890 49 056 890
Issue of shares 4 700 217 302 343 217 307 043 – 217 307 043

Total changes 4 700 217 302 343 217 307 043 49 056 890 266 363 933

Balance at 31 August 2008 4 700 217 302 343 217 307 043 49 056 890 266 363 933

Note 12 12 12

Company
Balance at 01 September 2007 – – – – –
Changes in equity
Profit for the year – – – 9 507 254 9 507 254
Issue of shares 4 700 217 302 343 217 307 043 – 217 307 043

Total changes 4 700 217 302 343 217 307 043 9 507 254 226 814 297

Balance at 31 August 2008 4 700 217 302 343 217 307 043 9 507 254 226 814 297

Note 12 12 12
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 August 2008

Group Company
Figures in Rand Notes 2008 2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from (used in) operations 28 45 948 707 (1 352 610)
Interest income 586 403 15 710 999
Finance costs (7 002 213) (3 388)

Net cash from operating activities 51 305 821 14 355 001

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (38 368 644) (447 014)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 5 674 476 –
Acquisition of businesses 30 8 670 977 (2 000)
Loans advanced to group companies – (115 375 857)
Purchase of financial assets (530 419) –

Net cash from investing activities (24 553 610) (115 824 871)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds on share issue 12 4 700 4 700
Proceeds on share issue – share premium 12 126 905 297 126 905 297
Repayment of financial liabilities (91 565 950) –
Repayment of instalment sale agreements (8 048 429) –

Net cash from financing activities 27 295 618 126 909 997

Total cash movement for the year 42 274 905 25 440 127
Cash at beginning of the year – –

Total cash at end of the year 11 42 274 905 25 440 127
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 August 2008

1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the
Companies Act of South Africa, 1973. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and
incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below.

These are the first financial statements of the group.

1.1 Significant judgements

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the financial statements. Significant judgements include:

Trade receivables

The group assesses its trade receivables for impairment at each balance sheet date. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the group makes judgements as to whether there
is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for
national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate
with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to
the estimated loss emergence period.

Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock

An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made
estimates of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the
operating profit note.

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the
higher of value-in-use calculations and fair values. These calculations require the use of estimates and
assumptions. It is reasonably possible that the future cash flows may be different to the current projections which
may then impact our estimations and may then require a material adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill and
tangible assets.

The group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is tested on an annual basis for impairment.
Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash flows of
other assets and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of
expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in
use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 16 – Provisions.

1.2 Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)

1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located
is also included in the cost of property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, to write down the cost, less residual value, on a
straight line basis over their useful lives as follows:

Item Average useful life

Land Indefinite
Plant and machinery
• Earthmoving equipment 6 years
• Plant and equipment 5 – 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 – 5 years
Motor vehicles 4 – 5 years
Office equipment 3 – 5 years
IT equipment 3 years

The residual value and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each financial period-end.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item shall be depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or
loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount
of the item.

1.3 Goodwill
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the company’s
interest of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Subsequently goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment.

The excess of the company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of the business combination is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an asset.

1.4 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised when:

• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it;
• there is an ability to use or sell it;
• it will generate probable future economic benefits;
• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell

the asset; and
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.4 Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided for on a straight line
basis over their useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at every period-end.

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a definite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying
amount is amortised over its useful life.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not
recognised as intangible assets.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values
as follows:

Item Useful life
Mining rights 20 years

1.5 Investments in subsidiaries

Group financial statements

The group financial statements include those of the holding company and its subsidiaries. The results of the
subsidiaries are included from the effective date of acquisition.

On acquisition the group recognises the subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities at fair
value, except for assets classified as held-for-sale, which are recognised at fair value less costs to sell.

Company financial statements

In the company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment.

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:

• the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the company; plus

• any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the subsidiary.

An adjustment to the cost of a business combination contingent on future events is included in the cost of the
combination if the adjustment is probable and can be measured reliably.

1.6 Financial instruments

Fair value determination

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as
little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Loans to (from) group companies

These include loans to (from) holding companies and subsidiaries and are recognised initially at fair value plus
direct transaction costs.

Subsequently these loans are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any
impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.6 Financial instruments (continued)

Loans to (from) group companies (continued)

On loans receivable an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that it is
impaired. The impairment is measured as the difference between the investment’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that
the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Loans to (from) group companies are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is
impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against operating expenses in the income statement.

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. These are initially and subsequently recorded at fair value.

Bank overdrafts and borrowings

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the
group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are measured initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

1.7 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already
paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised
as an asset.

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.7 Tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
liability arises from:

• the initial recognition of goodwill; or
• the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which:

– is not a business combination; and
– at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except to the extent that both of the
following conditions are satisfied:

• the parent, investor or venturer is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference; and
• it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised, unless the
deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that:

• is not a business combination; and
• at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,
branches and associates, and interests in joint ventures, to the extent that it is probable that:

• the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and
• taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused STC credits to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused STC
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.

Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for the period,
except to the extent that the tax arises from:

• a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, directly in equity; or
• a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited
or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity.

1.8 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership.

Finance leases – lessee

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit
in the lease.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.8 Leases (continued)

Finance leases – lessee (continued)

The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. 
The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating
lease asset. This liability is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

1.9 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value on the first-in, first-out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.

1.10 Impairment of assets

The group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the group also:

• tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for impairment
annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment test is performed
during the annual period and at the same time every period; and

• tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the
unit in the following order:

• first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit; and
• then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.10 Impairment of assets (continued)

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated
as a revaluation increase.

1.11 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities.

1.12 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance.

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined
contribution plans where the group’s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.

1.13 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when:

• the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party,
the reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received if the entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount
recognised for the reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in business combinations that are recognised
separately are subsequently measured at the higher of:

• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1.14 Revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:

• The group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
• The group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership

nor effective control over the goods sold;
• The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the group; and
• The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates, and value added tax.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.

1.15 Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.16 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:

• Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any
temporary investment of those borrowings.

• Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs
incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:

• expenditures for the asset have occurred;
• borrowing costs have been incurred, and
• activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.

Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 August 2008

2. STATEMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but
not yet effective:

IFRS 8: Operating Segments (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after 1 January 2009)

IFRIC 12: Service Concession Arrangements (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after 1 January 2008)

IFRIC 13: Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after 1 July 2008)

IFRIC 14: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction (effective date –
financial periods commencing on/after 1 January 2008)

Revised IFRS 3: Business Combinations (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after 1 July 2009)

Revised IAS 23: Borrowing Costs (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after 1 January 2009)

Revised IAS 27: Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective date – financial periods commencing
1 July 2009)

Amendment to IFRS 2: Share-based Payment (Vesting conditions and cancellation) (effective date – financial periods
commencing on/after 1 January 2009)

Amendment to IAS 1 (revised): Presentation of Financial Statements (effective date – financial periods commencing
on/after 1 January 2009)

Amendment to IAS 14: Segment Reporting (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after 1 January 2009)

Amendment to IAS 32: Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements (Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations arising on Liquidation) (effective date – financial periods commencing on/after
1 January 2009)

The group has not yet evaluated the impact of the above. Any changes will be implemented in the accounting period
commencing after the effective date.

2008
Accumulated Carrying

Figures in Rand Cost depreciation value

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Land 95 739 392 – 95 739 392
Plant and machinery 90 244 871 (9 555 455) 80 689 416
Furniture and fixtures 422 842 (49 977) 372 865
Motor vehicles 2 064 940 (159 742) 1 905 198
Office equipment 35 686 (6 244) 29 442
IT equipment 626 412 (184 251) 442 161
Leasehold improvements 87 643 (21 911) 65 732
Property, plant and equipment under construction 17 490 936 – 17 490 936

Total 206 712 722 (9 977 580) 196 735 142

Company
Furniture and fixtures 187 712 (2 797) 184 915
Office equipment 20 234 (2 125) 18 109
IT equipment 151 426 (25 548) 125 878
Leasehold improvements 87 643 (21 911) 65 732

Total 447 015 (52 381) 394 634
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Group – 2008

Additions
through

Opening business
Figures in Rand balance Additions combinations Disposals Depreciation Total

Land – 2 146 014 93 593 378 – – 95 739 392
Plant and machinery – 15 997 899 71 423 083 – (6 731 566) 80 689 416
Furniture and fixtures – 381 860 27 575 – (36 570) 372 865
Motor vehicles – 1 776 343 6 036 235 (5 714 114) (193 266) 1 905 198
Office equipment – 45 236 7 149 – (22 943) 29 442
IT equipment – 442 713 158 185 – (158 737) 442 161
Leasehold improvements – 87 643 – – (21 911) 65 732
Property, plant and 
equipment under 
construction – 17 490 936 – – – 17 490 936

– 38 368 644 171 245 605 (5 714 114) (7 164 993) 196 735 142

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment – Company – 2008

Opening
balance Additions Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures – 187 712 (2 797) 184 915
Office equipment – 20 234 (2 125) 18 109
IT equipment – 151 426 (25 548) 125 878
Leasehold improvements – 87 642 (21 910) 65 732

– 447 014 (52 380) 394 634

Assets subject to instalment sale agreements 
(Net carrying amount)

Plant and machinery 54 096 768 –
Motor vehicles 1 616 982 –

55 713 750 –

2008
Accumulated Carrying

Cost amortisation value

4. GOODWILL

Group
Goodwill 102 423 282 – 102 423 282

Reconciliation of goodwill – Group – 2008
Additions

through 
Opening business 
balance combinations Total

Goodwill – 102 423 282 102 423 282
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4. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing

Goodwill of R79 646 031 relates to the goodwill of the West End Claybrick cash generating unit (CGU) and goodwill of
R44 520 550 relates to the Drift Supersand CGU. Goodwill is treated as having an indefinite useful life on the expectancy
that the CGU to which the business relates is a going concern. The group tests annually whether the goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined based on value in use calculations. The assumptions applied for each of the variables are conservative and
match those applied in the preparation of group budgets and forecasts. Assumptions are supported by past experience.
Future cash flows were discounted at a rate of 15% to 20% over a 10 year period and assuming a growth rate of 9%. The
value of goodwill determined on this basis significantly exceeds the carrying value at year-end.

2008
Accumulated Carrying

Figures in Rand Cost amortisation value

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Group
Mining rights 21 743 300 (1 087 165) 20 656 135

Reconciliation of intangible assets – Group – 2008

Additions
through

Opening business
balance combinations Amortisation Total

Mining rights – 21 743 300 (1 087 165) 20 656 135

Synopsis of mining rights

Drift Supersand
Mining Blend Regal Brick Regal Brick

Reference number ML06/1998 ML7/2003 – –

Mineral Sand, gravel Clay Sand occurring Clay
and igneous rock in the slimes dam

Properties Portion 116, a portion Remaining portion 1 Mine residue deposit Remaining portion of
of portion 79 of of the farm Waterspan RMT 273/77 located portion 1 and a
Roodekrans No. 183, 292 – IQ Westonaria on portion 3 of the portion of portion 32
District Krugersdorp, farm Witpoortjie of the farm
Gauteng measuring 245 – IQ Mogale City Waterspan 292 – IQ
26,8480 hectares District, measuring Westonaria,
in extent 18,1590 hectares measuring 49,9934

in extent hectares in extent

Portion 80 of
Roodekrans No. 183,
District Krugersdorp,
Gauteng measuring
38,86 hectares in 
extent

Portion 79 of
Roodekrans No. 183,
District Krugersdorp
Gauteng measuring
26,84 hectares in 
extent

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Synopsis of mining rights (continued)

Drift Supersand
Mining Blend Regal Brick Regal Brick

Issue date 1 July 1998 26 February 2003 6 March 2007 6 March 2007

Expiration date 30 April 2009 30 April 2009 5 March 2017 5 March 2037

Status Old order mining right Old order mining right New order mining New order mining
Application for Application for right right
conversion has conversion has
been submitted been submitted

Trade receivables have been ceded to the ban as security for facilities granted.

Impairment testing

The value in use of the cash-generating units to which the intangible relates has been tested for impairment (Refer
goodwill note 4). Based on the value calculated of the CGU there is no indication of impairment to the mining rights.

6. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Carrying
Figures in Rand % holding amount
Name of company 2008 2008

Drift Super Sand (Proprietary) Limited 100,00 28 841 200
West End Claybrick (Proprietary) Limited 100.00 61 557 846

90 399 046

Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortised cost
Environmental Rehabilitation Trust Fund 530 419 –

Loans and receivables
Advances for capital under construction 13 505 751 –

Total other financial assets 14 036 170 –

Non-current assets
At fair value through profit or loss 530 419 –
Loans and receivables 13 505 751 –

14 036 170 –

8. INVENTORIES

Raw materials, components 7 439 842 –
Work in progress 10 645 569 –
Finished goods 14 788 632 –
Production supplies 6 739 678 –

Subtotal 39 613 721 –
Inventories (write-downs) (1 530 000) –

38 083 721 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

9. LOANS TO GROUP COMPANIES
Subsidiaries

Drift Super Sand (Proprietary) Limited – 63 355 943

The loan is unsecured, R58 052 743 bears interest at prime interest rate 
plus 0,5%, and has no fixed terms of repayment. The balance of the loan is 
interest free.

West End Claybrick (Proprietary) Limited – 52 019 914

The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime interest rate and has no fixed 
terms of repayment.

– 115 375 857

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 30 185 357 –
Prepayments 14 044 14 044
Deposits 293 857 –
Other 1 059 234 89 008

31 552 492 103 052

Certain trade receivables have been ceded to the bank as security for facilities
granted.

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired

Trade and other receivables which are less than 90 days past due are not
considered to be impaired. At 31 August 2008, R1 033 153 were past due but
not impaired. No impairment was raised on the past due debtors based on the
payment history of the specific debtors and the fact that credit guarantee is in
place for a part of the past due debtors.

A provision of R2 261 296 was raised for past due trade and other receivables.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
31 – 60 days 454 041 –
61 – 90 days 579 112 –

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Additions through acquisitions 2 261 296 –

11. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 300 –
Bank balances 42 274 605 25 440 127

42 274 905 25 440 127

12. SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
1 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R 0,00001 each 10 000 10 000

530 000 000 unissued ordinary shares are under the control of the directors. 
This authority remains in force until the next annual general meeting.

Issued
Ordinary 4 700 4 700
Share premium 217 302 343 217 302 343

217 307 043 217 307 043

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

13. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Held at amortised cost
Bank loan 52 638 731 –

The loan is secured over property valued at R68 000 000, bears interest 
at prime less 1,5% and is repayable in 60 instalments of R928 390.

HJ du Preez 7 280 874 –

The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime interest rate and has 
no fixed terms of repayment.

59 919 605 –

Non-current liabilities
At amortised cost 46 212 104 –

Current liabilities
At amortised cost 13 707 501 –

59 919 605 –

14. INSTALMENT SALE AGREEMENTS

Minimum lease payments due

– within one year 19 256 946 –
– in second to fifth year inclusive 52 628 119 –

71 885 065 –
Less: future finance charges (17 222 942) –

Present value of minimum lease payments 54 662 123 –

Present value of minimum lease payments due

– within one year 11 892 335 –
– in second to fifth year inclusive 42 769 788 –

54 662 123 –

Non-current liabilities 42 769 788 –
Current liabilities 11 892 335 –

54 662 123 –

It is group policy to lease certain motor vehicles and equipment under instalment sale agreements.

The average lease term was three to five years and the average effective borrowing rate was 15%.

Interest rates are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases have fixed repayments and no arrangements have
been entered into for contingent rent.

The group’s obligations under instalment sale agreements are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
Refer note 3.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

15. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax liability

Property, plant and equipment (2 449 204) (19 660)
Acquired through business combination (5 800 827) –
Arising on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment acquired through 
business combination (3 586 119) –
Provision for doubtful debts 46 196 –
Provision for leave pay and bonus 372 960 –

(11 416 994) (19 660)

Reconciliation of deferred tax liability

Originating temporary difference on property, plant and equipment (2 449 204) (19 660)
Increase in deferred tax acquired through business combination (5 800 827) –
Increase in deferred tax on intangible assets acquired through business combination (3 586 119) –
Originating temporary difference on provision for doubtful debts 46 196 –
Originating temporary difference on provision for leave pay and bonus 372 960 –

(11 416 994) (19 660)

16. PROVISIONS
Reconciliation of provisions – Group – 2008

Additions
through

Opening business
balance Additions combinations Total

Environmental rehabilitation – 5 559 112 3 233 731 8 792 843

The provision has been raised due to the group’s obligation to rectify environmental damage on the mine situated at
remaining portion 1 of the farm Waterpan 292 – IQ Westonaria and the Drift Supersand quarry situated at Muldersdrift.

In accordance with legislation, the land contaminated by the company must be restored to its original condition when
mining activities come to an end. During the current year the company provided for this purpose. Because of the long-
term nature of the liability, the biggest uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. In particular,
the company has assumed that the site will be restored using technology and materials that are available currently.

Group Company
2008 2008

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 16 389 021 –
VAT 1 493 149 133 537
Accrued leave pay 1 861 091 –
Accrued bonus 482 434 –
Accrued audit fees 820 000 360 000
Accrued expenses 1 130 547 541 522

22 176 242 1 035 059

18. RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution plan

It is the policy of the group to provide retirement benefits to all its employees. 
A defined contribution provident fund, which is subject to the Pensions Fund Act, 
exists for this purpose.

The group is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits.
The total group contribution to such schemes 1 542 239 –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

19. REVENUE

Sale of goods 201 344 099 –

20. COST OF SALES

Sale of goods

Cost of goods sold 92 898 761 –

21. OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)

Operating profit (loss) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Operating lease charges

• Premises 125 791 125 791
• Equipment 200 406 –

326 197 125 791

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (39 638) –
Amortisation on intangible assets 1 087 165 –
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 7 164 993 52 380
Employee costs 32 244 352 3 513 274

22. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Bonus and
performance Subsistence

related Company and travel
2008 Salary payments contributions allowance Total

Executive
RD Gamsu 1 680 000 – – 120 000 1 800 000
J Hooman 2 232 000 180 000 104 225 – 2 516 225
IM Klitzner 1 008 000 – – 92 000 1 100 000

4 920 000 180 000 104 225 212 000 5 416 225

2008 Board fees Total

Non-executive
HSP Mashaba 120 000 120 000
NC Machingawuta 120 000 120 000

240 000 240 000

Group Company
2008 2008

23. INVESTMENT REVENUE

Interest revenue

Bank 586 403 370 618
Subsidiaries – 15 340 381

586 403 15 710 999

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

24. FINANCE COSTS
Non-current borrowings 6 998 825 –
Other interest paid 3 388 3 388

7 002 213 3 388

25. TAXATION
Major components of the tax expense

Current
Local income tax – current period 17 191 515 3 843 700

Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences 1 858 560 19 660
Other deferred tax 171 488 –

2 030 048 19 660

19 221 563 3 863 360

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.

Accounting profit 68 278 453 13 370 614

Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% 19 117 967 3 743 772

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Non-deductible expenditure 451 015 119 588
Permanent differences (347 419) –

19 221 563 3 863 360

26. AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
Fees 838 394 360 000
Consulting 116 962 –

955 356 360 000

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 49 056 890 –
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic 
earnings per share 444 575 000 –

Basic earnings per share (cents) 11,03 –

Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 49 056 890 –
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted 
earnings per share 444 575 000 –

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 11,03 –

Headline earnings and diluted headline earnings per share

Reconciliation of headline earnings per share to earnings per share
Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 49 056 890 –
Add IAS 16 loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 39 638 –

Headline earnings for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent 49 096 528 –

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of headline 
earnings and diluted headline earnings per share 444 575 000 –

Headline earnings and diluted headline earnings per share (cents) 11,04 –
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

28. CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 68 278 453 13 370 614
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 8 252 158 52 380
Loss on sale of assets 39 638 –
Interest received (586 403) (15 710 999)
Finance costs 7 002 213 3 388
Movements in provisions (5 559 112) –
Changes in working capital:
Inventories (23 220 254) –
Trade and other receivables (9 709 173) (103 052)
Trade and other payables 1 451 187 1 035 059

45 948 707 (1 352 610)

29. TAX RECEIVED
Current tax for the year recognised in income statement (17 191 515) (3 843 700)
Adjustment in respect of businesses acquired during the year (5 238 592) –
Balance at end of the year 22 430 107 3 843 700

– –

30. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES
West End Drift Super

Clay Brick Sand
99% 100% 

acquired acquired
Fair value of assets acquired
Property, plant and equipment 67 534 433 103 711 173
Deferred taxation – (5 783 718
Inventories 14 863 467 –
Trade and other receivables 4 084 132 17 759 187
Trade and other payables (1 872 989) (17 100 685)
Taxation (3 212 186) (2 026 406)
Provisions (3 233 731) –
Borrowings (4 722 511) –
Cash 2 610 267 6 060 710
Loans from shareholders (33 106 439) (108 656 605)
Short-term loan – (5 000 000)
Finance lease liability (58 833 943) (3 876 610)
At acquisition expenses allocated to goodwill (2 349 730) (917 441)

Net tangible assets and liabilities (18 239 230) (15 830 395)

Goodwill 79 646 031 44 520 550

Shares issued 61 406 801 28 690 155

Net cash inflow on acquisition
Cash acquired 8 670 977 –

Effective 1 September 2007 the group acquired 100% of Drift Supersand for a total consideration of 95,7 million shares
in Buildworks.

Effective 1 September 2007 the group acquired 99% of West End Claybrick for a total consideration of 204,7 million
shares in Buildworks.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)
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Group Company
Figures in Rand 2008 2008

31. COMMITMENTS
Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for
• Plant and equipment 42 000 000 –

The group has an outstanding capital commitment of R42 000 000. 
R39 000 000 relates to the roof tile plant at West End Claybrick. 
R37 000 000 will be funded from the pre-approved facility provided 
by Wesbank and the balance of R2 000 000 from internal resources.

Operating leases – as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due

Minimum lease payments due
– within one year 159 600 –
– in second to fifth year inclusive 444 600 –

604 200 –

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group. 
No contingent rent is payable.

32. RELATED PARTIES
Relationships
Subsidiaries Refer to note 6
Members of key management RD Gamsu

IM Klitzner
J Hooman
IM Hambridge
HPS Mashaba
PH Spies

Compensation to directors and other key management
Short-term employee benefits 8 988 555 3 140 000

33. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
No comparative figures have been presented as these are the maiden financial statements of the group.

34. RISK MANAGEMENT
The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including liquidity risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The group manages liquidity
risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

The table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

2nd to 5th
At 31 August 2008 Within 1 year year inclusive Over 5 years

Group
Borrowings 13 707 501 46 212 104 –
Instalment sale agreements 11 892 335 42 769 788 –
Trade and other payables 22 176 242 – –

Company
Trade and other payables 89 008 – –

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)
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34. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest rate risk

The group analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis. Various scenarios are simulated taking into
consideration refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative financing and hedging. Based on these scenarios, the
group calculates the impact on profit and loss of a defined interest rate shift.

At 31 August 2008, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been R2 523 559 lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. 
The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one
counter-party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board.
The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit
cards. Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:

Figures in Rand Group Company
Financial instrument 2008 2008

Loans to group companies – 115 375 857
Financial assets 14 036 170 –
Trade and other receivables 31 538 448 89 008
Cash and cash equivalents 42 274 905 25 440 127

35. FINANCIAL ASSETS BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Loans and At amortised Held to Available
Figures in Rand receivables cost maturity for sale Total

Group – 2008
Financial assets 13 505 751 530 419 – – 14 036 170
Trade and other receivables 31 538 448 – – – 31 538 448
Cash and cash equivalents 42 274 905 – – – 42 274 905

87 319 104 530 419 – – 87 849 523

Company – 2008
Loans to group companies 115 375 857 – – – 115 375 857
Trade and other receivables 89 008 – – – 89 008
Cash and cash equivalents 25 440 127 – – – 25 440 127

140 904 992 – – – 140 904 992

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)
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36. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group – 2008
Financial Fair value Fair value

liabilities at through profit through profit
amortised or loss – held or loss –

Figures in Rand cost for trading designated Total

Financial liabilities 59 919 605 – – 59 919 605
Instalment sale agreements 54 662 123 – – 54 662 123
Trade payables 14 895 872 – – 14 895 872

129 477 600 – – 129 477 600

37. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The group has completed, subject to the condition precedent that the company raise the requisite capital, the acquisition
of Consolidated Power Projects (“Conco”) a leading provider of Turnkey Solutions for and power services to the electricity
supply industry. Conco’s expertise in the design, project management, construction and commissioning of high voltage
switchyards, substations and overhead power lines and Green Energy Projects has resulted in Conco gaining a
reputation as an established market leader with a proven track record achieved from over 22 years of industry
experience. To date Conco has completed in excess of 450 projects throughout South Africa and on the African
continent and is ideally positioned in a high growth market with relatively few competitors offering high voltage solutions.

The Conco acquisition forms part of a strategy to identify and assess value enhancing acquisition opportunities in the
construction and infrastructure related industries. The acquisition significantly enhances the group’s ability to benefit from
the parastatals’ and public’s planned roll-out of infrastructure development and related spend in South Africa specifically
in relation to South Africa’s power generating capacity and the distribution and transmission thereof. Post the transaction
it is anticipated that 83% of the group’s revenue will be generated by the power supply sector. On 1 September 2008
Conco had an order book of R1,2 billion and had submitted tenders for which they were awaiting adjudication of
R1,76 billion.

To fulfil the condition precedent the company received interest from prospective investors to subscribe for new
Buildworks shares at a price of between 70 to 80 cents. Accordingly, the company is currently engaged in negotiations
with such prospective investors to ensure that the terms and conditions of the offers are satisfactory to both the
company, vendors of Conco and prospective investors. Accordingly the Buildworks shareholders were advised in the
cautionary dated 13 November 2008 to exercise caution when dealing in Buildworks shares until such time as a further
announcement is made.

Full details of the proposed acquisition were presented in a circular to Buildworks shareholders issued on
20 October 2008.

38. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Drift West End Corporate &
Supersand Claybrick other segments Total

Revenue 104 207 297 97 136 802 – 201 344 099

Depreciation and amortisation 3 472 694 3 639 919 1 139 545 8 252 158

Net profit before interest and taxation 30 892 955 48 538 304 (4 736 996) 74 694 263

Total assets 84 277 010 196 280 972 165 203 865 445 761 847

Total liabilities 68 821 918 93 298 794 17 277 202 179 397 914

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 August 2008 (continued)
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Notice is hereby given that the first annual general meeting of members of Buildworks Group Limited (“Buildworks” or the
“Company”) will be held at 6A Sandown Valley Crescent, on 30 April 2009 at 10h00 to conduct the following business: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the annual financial statements of the Company and the group as at and for its year
ended on 31 August 2008, together with the reports of the directors and auditors thereon.

2. To elect individually, the undermentioned directors, who were appointed as directors on 28 September 2007 (save for
A Dixon who was appointed as a director on 1 April 2008), as a result of which their appointment is valid only until the
next annual general meeting, but being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:

2.1 R D Gamsu;

2.2 I M Klitzner;

2.3 H S P Mashaba; 

2.4 N C Machingawuta; and

2.5 A D Dixon.  

3. Ratifying the appointment to the Board of the undermentioned persons as directors of the Company, such persons having
been nominated by Pan African Investment Partners II Limited, or its nominee (“PAIP II”) for appointment to the Board:

Panagiotis Voutyritsas, Nathan Mintah and Andrea Geisser

4. To authorise the directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors for the past audit.

5. To approve the payment of remuneration to the directors, including fees payable to non-executive directors.

6. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass with or without modification, the following special resolution:

Special resolution No. 1 
Resolved that the authorised ordinary share capital of Buildworks be and is hereby decreased from R20 000.00,
comprising 2 000 000 000 ordinary shares with a par value of R0.00001 each, to R13 000.00, comprising 1 300 000 000
ordinary shares, with a par value of R0.00001 each, and that the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and
is hereby amended accordingly. 

The reason for Special resolution No.1 is to reduce the authorised share capital of Buildworks so as to limit the number
of authorised but unissued shares in the capital of the Company which may potentially be placed under the control of
the directors pursuant to a general authority granted under section 221 of the Companies Act.  The effect of the
aforementioned resolution will be to reduce the authorised share capital from 2 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R0.00001
each to 1 300 000 000 ordinary shares of R0.00001 each.

The reduction in the authorised share capital will still provide sufficient unissued share capital for the directors to meet
foreseeable share obligations in terms of the Staff Share Scheme and a possible future vendor placement to be made in
the event that the earn out provisions are achieved in terms of the Conco Acquisition Agreement as read with the
Company’s circular to its shareholders dated 20 October 2008. 

At the date of this notice, Buildworks’ authorised share capital of the Company is as follows:

Authorised share capital R
2 000 000 000 ordinary shares of R0.00001 each 20 000

After the decrease the Company’s authorised share capital will be as follows:

Authorised share capital R
1 300 000 000 ordinary shares of R0.00001 each 13 000

The issued share capital of the Company will remain unchanged.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO MEMBERS
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7. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass with or without modification, the following ordinary resolution:

Ordinary resolution No. 1
Resolved that the authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company be and are hereby placed
under the control of the directors of the Company in terms of sections 221 and 222 of the Companies Act, 1973 (Act
No. 61 of 1973), as amended (“Companies Act”) until the next annual general meeting and the directors be and they
are hereby authorised and empowered by way of a general authority in terms of section 221 of the Companies Act, to
allot and issue any and all of the unissued shares in the authorised share capital of the Company at such time or times
to such person or persons or bodies corporate and upon such terms and conditions as the directors may from time to
time in their sole discretion determine, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, the Company's Articles of
Association and the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“Listings Requirements”), provided that the maximum
number of ordinary shares which can be issued in terms of this authority in the aggregate in any one year shall not exceed
15% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company from time to time.” 

8. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass with or without modification,  the  following  ordinary  resolution:

Ordinary resolution No. 2
Resolved that the directors of the Company be and they are hereby authorised by way of a general authority to issue all
or any of the authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the capital of the Company for cash, as and when they in their
discretion deem fit, subject to the Listings Requirements, which currently provide, inter alia, that any ordinary shares
issued in terms of this authority:

8.1 must be of a class already in issue, or must be convertible into a class of shares already in issue;

8.2 this authority shall be valid until the next annual general meeting of the Company, provided it shall not extend
beyond 15 (fifteen) months from the date that this authority is given;

8.3 after the company has in terms of this authority issued ordinary shares for cash equivalent to 5% or more of the
number of ordinary shares of that class in issue prior to that issue, the company shall publish an announcement
giving full details of such issue (including the number of ordinary shares issued, the average discount to the
weighted average traded price of the shares over the 30 days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed
in writing between the company and the party/ies subscribed for the ordinary shares and the effects of the issued
on net asset value per share, net tangible asset value per share, earnings per share, headline earnings per share
and if applicable, diluted earnings and headline earnings per share);

8.4 in determining the price at which an issue of ordinary shares may be made in terms of this authority, the maximum
discount permitted will be 10% of the weighted average traded price determined over the 30 business days prior
to the date that the price of the issue is agreed between the company and the party/ies subscribing for the
ordinary shares; 

8.6 must be issued to public shareholders, and not to related parties, all as defined in the Listings Requirements of
the JSE;

8.7 may not in aggregate in any one financial year (taking into account the number of any ordinary shares that may be
issued in future as a result of the issue of any convertible securities in terms of this authority) exceed 15% of:

8.7.1 the number of ordinary shares of that class in issue on the date in question (including any ordinary shares
that may be issued in future as a result of any existing convertible securities/options); less

8.7.2 any ordinary shares issued during the financial year in question (including the number of any ordinary
shares that may be issued in future as a result of the issue of any convertible securities/option in terms of
this authority); plus

8.7.3 any ordinary shares of that class to be issued pursuant to a rights issue which has been announced, is
irrevocable and is full underwritten; plus

8.7.4 any ordinary shares of that class to be issued pursuant to an acquisition that has been announced, is
irrevocable and is fully underwritten.

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, this resolution is subject to at least 75% of the votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy, at this annual general meeting, being cast in favour thereof. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO MEMBERS
(continued)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO MEMBERS
(continued)

9. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass with or without modification, the following special resolution:

Special resolution No. 2 
Resolved that the following is substituted for article 13.2 of the Company’s articles of association:

“13.2 The directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person as a director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board, but so that the total number of directors shall not at any time exceed
a maximum number of 11 directors. Subject to the provisions of article 16.2 any person appointed to fill a causal vacancy
or as an addition to the Board, shall retain office only until the next following annual meeting of the Company and shall
then retire and be eligible for re-election.”

The reason for special resolution No. 2 is to limit the maximum number of directors that may be appointed to the
Buildworks Board and the effect of the aforementioned resolution is to limit the maximum number of directors to a
total of 11. 

10. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass with or without modification, the following ordinary resolution:

Ordinary resolution No.3
Resolved that, the undermentioned amendments be made to the Company’s Share Option and Share Purchase Scheme
(“the Share Scheme”):

• the maximum number of shares in the capital of the Company available for allocation to beneficiaries under the Share
Scheme shall be limited to and may not exceed in the aggregate 100 million ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company from time to time; and 

• the allocation of shares in terms of the Share Scheme shall remain controlled by the Board but subject to the
recommendation of a sub-committee of the Company's Board, to be constituted and known as the “Remuneration
Committee”, on the basis that the Board in its discretion shall from time to time determine the composition and the
powers of such “Remuneration Committee”.

In terms of the JSE Listings Requirements, this resolution is subject to at least 75% of the votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy, at this annual general meeting, being cast in favour thereof.

11. To consider and, if deemed fit, pass with or without modification, the following ordinary  resolution:

Ordinary resolution No. 4
Resolved that, shareholders ratify the Board resolution reserving 200 000 000 of the authorised but unissued Buildworks
shares solely for issue to the vendors of Consolidated Power Projects (Proprietary) Limited in respect of the earn out
provisions, as described in the paragraph 3.1.2 of the circular issued by the Company to its shareholders dated
20 October 2008. 

Voting
On a show of hands, every Buildworks Shareholder who (being an individual) is present in person or by proxy at the
Buildworks Annual General Meeting or which (being a Company or body corporate) is represented thereat by a representative
appointed pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, shall have one vote, and on a poll, every Buildworks Shareholder
who (being an individual) is present in person or by proxy at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting or which (being a
Company or body corporate) is represented by proxy at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting, shall have one vote for every
Buildworks share of which it is the holder.

Shares held by a share trust or scheme will not have their votes at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting taken into account.

Proxies
A Buildworks shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting may appoint one or more
persons as its proxy to attend, speak and vote in its stead. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company.

A form of proxy is attached for the convenience of certificated Buildworks shareholders and own-name dematerialised
Buildworks shareholders who are unable to attend the Buildworks Annual General Meeting, but who wish to be
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represented thereat. In order to be valid, duly completed forms of proxy must be received by the transfer secretaries 
of the Company, Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary) Limited, Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg,
2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107), so as to be received by them no later than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

The CSDP or broker, as the case may be, of dematerialised Buildworks shareholders other than with “own-name” registration
should contact such Buildworks shareholders of the Buildworks Annual General Meeting pursuant to which such
Dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders must instruct their CSDP or broker, as the case may be, as to how they wish to cast
their vote at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting in order for their CSDP or broker, as the case may be, to vote in
accordance with such instructions. If such Dematerialised Buildworks shareholders wish to attend the Buildworks Annual
General Meeting in person, they must request their CSDP or broker, as the case may be, to issue the necessary letter of
representation to them. This must be done in terms of the agreement entered into between the dematerialised Buildworks
shareholder and the CSDP or broker.

By order of the Board

Morestat Corporate Services
Company Secretary

Sandton
24 November 2008

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO MEMBERS
(continued)
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GENERAL AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities Supplier of heavy building materials to the construction industry

Directors RD Gamsu
J Hooman
IM Klitzner
HSP Mashaba
NC Machingawuta – Zimbabwean
AD Dixon

Registered office 6A Sandown Valley Crescent
Sandown
Sandton
2196

Postal address PO Box 651455
Benmore
2010

Auditors PKF (Jhb) Inc
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registered Auditors

Secretary Morestat Corporate Services (Proprietary) Limited

Transfer secretaries Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Limited

Designated advisor Java Capital (Proprietary) Limited

Company registration number 2007/004935/06

Share code BWK

ISIN ZAE000110219

Visit our website: www.buildworksgroup.co.za
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FORM OF PROXY

Buildworks Group Limited
(Previously Boomerang Trading 35 (Proprietary) Limited)

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number 2007/004935/06)

Share Code: BWK ISIN:ZAE000110219
(“Buildworks” or “the Company”)

FORM OF PROXY FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BUILDWORKS (“BUILDWORKS SHAREHOLDERS”), FOR
USE BY CERTIFICATED HOLDERS OF BUILDWORKS ORDINARY SHARES AND HOLDERS OF DEMATERIALISED BUILDWORKS SHARES WITH
“OWN NAME” REGISTRATION ONLY

For use by certificated holders of Buildworks ordinary shares and holders of dematerialised Buildworks shares with “own name” registration at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held at 10:00 on 30 April 2009 (“Buildworks Annual General Meeting”) at, 6A Sandown Valley Crescent,
Sandown, Sandton. Such persons, being entitled to attend and vote at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting, may appoint one or more persons
as his/her proxy to attend, speak or vote in his/her stead at the Annual General Meeting. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. 

The CSDP or broker, as the case may be, of dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders other than those dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders with “own
name” registration is obliged to contact such dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders to ascertain how they wish to cast their vote at the Buildworks Annual
General Meeting and thereafter cast their vote in accordance with their instructions. If such dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders have not been
contacted it would be advisable for them to contact their CSDP or broker, as the case may be, and furnish them with their instructions. If the CSDP or
broker, as the case may be, does not obtain instructions from such dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders, they will be obliged to act in terms of the
mandate furnished to them, or if the mandate is silent in this regard, to abstain from voting. Such dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders other than
own-name dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders must not complete this form of proxy and should read note 9 overleaf.

I/We (Full names in block letters)

of (Address)

Telephone: (Work) Telephone: (Home)

Being the holder/s of Buildworks ordinary shares, do hereby appoint:

1. or failing him/her,

2. or failing him/her,

3. or failing him/her,

4. the Chairman of the Buildworks Annual General Meeting, as my/our proxy to act for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting as follows:

Number of ordinary shares*

In favour of Against Abstain

1. To adopt the annual financial statements of the Company

2. To re-elect RD Gamsu as a director of the Company

3. To re-elect IM Klitzner as a director of the Company

4. To re-elect HSP Mashaba as a director of the Company

5. To re-elect HSP Mashaba as a director of the Company

6. To re-elect NC Machingawuta as a director of the Company

7. To re-elect AD Dixon as a director of the Company

8. To ratify appointment to the Buildworks Board of persons being nominated by PAIP II or its nominee

9. To authorise directors to determine the remuneration of the auditors for the past audit

10. To approve the payment of remuneration to the directors, including fees payable to non-executive directors

11. To pass special resolution 1 – authorisation to decrease the authorised ordinary share capital

12. To pass ordinary resolution 1 – authorisation to place the authorised but unissued share capital in the 
control of the directors until the next annual general meeting

13. To pass ordinary resolution 2 – authorisation for the  directors to issue ordinary shares of the Company for cash

14. To pass special resolution 2- authorisation to substitute article 13.2 of the Company’s articles

15. To pass ordinary resolution 3 – authorisation to approve the amendment to the Company’s Share Option 
& Share Purchase Scheme

16. To pass ordinary resolution 4 – ratification of the Board resolution reserving 200 000 000 of the authorised but 
unissued Buildworks shares solely for issue to the vendors of Consolidated Power Projects (Proprietary) Limited

Unless otherwise instructed, my proxy may vote as he/she thinks fit

*One vote per share held by a Buildworks Shareholder.

Signed at this day of 2009

Signature/s

Assisted by (where applicable)

Please read the notes on the reverse side hereof.
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NOTES TO FORM OF PROXY

Notes:

1. A certificated Buildworks Shareholder may insert the name of a proxy and the names of two substitute proxies of such
Shareholder’s choice in the space/s provided, with or without deleting “the Chairman of the Buildworks Annual General
Meeting”, but any such deletion must be initialled by the Shareholder. The person whose name stands first on the form
of proxy and who is present at the Buildworks Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act as proxy to the exclusion
of those whose names follow.

2. A certificated or dematerialised with “own name” registration Buildworks Shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be
indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable by such Shareholder in the appropriate box
provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the chairman of the Buildworks Annual General
Meeting, if he is the authorised proxy, or any other proxy, to vote or abstain from voting at the Buildworks Annual General
Meeting as he/she deems fit in respect of all the Buildworks Shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat.

3. Forms of proxy must be lodged at or posted to the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (Proprietary)
Limited, Ground Floor, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107) (“Transfer
Secretaries”) so as to be received by not later than 10:00 on 29 April 2009.

4. The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant Buildworks Shareholder from attending
the Buildworks Annual General Meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy
appointed in terms hereof, should such certificated Buildworks Shareholder or “own-name” dematerialised Shareholder
wish to do so.

5. The chairman of the Buildworks Annual General Meeting may reject or accept any form of proxy which is completed
and/or received otherwise than in accordance with these notes, provided that, in respect of acceptances, he is satisfied
as to the manner in which the certificated Buildworks Shareholder concerned wishes to vote.

6. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must
be attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the Company’s Transfer Secretaries or waived by the
chairman of the Buildworks Annual General Meeting.

7. Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be initialled by the signatory/ies.

8. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her capacity are
produced or have been registered by the Transfer Secretaries.

9. Dematerialised Buildworks Shareholders, other than those with “own name” registration, who wish to attend the
Buildworks Annual General Meeting or vote by way of proxy, must contact their CSDP or broker, as the case may be,
who will furnish them with the necessary authority to attend the Buildworks Annual General Meeting or be represented
thereat by proxy. This must be done in terms of the custody agreement entered into between such dematerialised
Buildworks Shareholder and his/her CSDP or broker.
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